
 

 
Financial Services 

7 North Dixie Highway 
Lake Worth, FL 33460 

561.586.1651 
 

Addendum No. 1 
RFP 17-201 

  
 MOTOROLA DIGITAL TWO- WAY RADIO SYSTEM UPGRADE 

 
Each recipient of this Addendum No. 1 to the Request for Proposal (RFP) who responds to the RFP 
acknowledges all of the provisions set forth in the RFP and agrees to be bound by the terms thereof.  
This addendum shall modify, clarify, change or add information and clarification and become part of the 
above referenced RFP. 
 
POSTPONEMENT OF DUE DATE 
 
From:  Tuesday, November 22, 2016 at 3:00 PM 
 
To:  Tuesday, December 6, 2016 at 3:00 PM 
 
 
CHANGE TO THE TERM “MOTOROLA” 
 
The term “Motorola” is replaced by “Project Objective” on page 2 and page 3. 
 
CLARIFICATION: 
 
1. The project objective states to implement a Link Capacity Plus solution, however on the repeater 

specifications, it states Single Site Capacity Plus.  Is there a second site to link?  If so, where is 
it?  If not, then this should be a Single Site Capacity Plus system. 
A: This is a single site only 

 
2. How many radios from each group (T&D Electric, Sysops, etc.) are to be tracked using GPS? 

XPR7550e portables: all 78?     SL7550e portables: 0     XPR5550e mobiles: all 71? 
A: All portable and all mobile radios shall be tracked via dispatch console(s) 
 

3. Should the 2 Dispatchers at Water Department have access to only the Water Department talk 
group, or to all 6 talk groups? 
A: Water Department Only 
 

4. Should the 2 Dispatchers at Electric Department have access to only the Electric Department talk 
group, or to all 6 talk groups? 
A: All 6 talk groups 
 

5. Should the 1 Dispatcher at Meter Shop Department have access to only the Meter Shop 
Department talk group, or to all 6 talk groups? 
A: Meter Shop only 
 



 

 
 
 
 

 
 

6. How many mobile phone users will need access to voice services? 
A: None 
 

7. How many mobile phone users will need access to GPS services? 
A:None 
 

8. What are the addresses for the dispatch locations at Water Department, Electric Department, and 
the Meter Shop Department? 
A:  
Water Plant 
301 College Street 
Lake Worth, FL 33460 
 
Electric Department 
116 College Street 
Lake Worth, FL 33460 
 
Meter Shop 
1900 2nd Avenue North 
Lake Worth, FL 33461 

9. What functions/capabilities/features below are you asking for at each of the (5) dispatch positions: 

a) Voice dispatch for all 6 talk groups? Yes 

b) GPS mapping?  Yes 

c) Text messaging? Yes 

d) System monitoring/data logging/diagnostics/printing? Yes 

e) Separate monitors for voice dispatch, GPS mapping, and system monitoring? Yes 

f) What size and type (21”, 24”, touchscreen, etc.) monitors do you request at each dispatch 
position? City will provide computer and display console for all dispatchers 

g) Do you want desk mics, headsets, and/or footswitches at the 5 primary dispatch locations? 
Desk mics 

 
10. Are there any other city departments or locations in the city requiring separate base control station 

for secondary dispatching? 
A: No 

  



 

 
 
 
 
 
 

11. The Project Objective describes the requirement for a Motorola Linked Capacity Plus system.  Are 
all repeaters to be co-located at the City’s water tower?  If so, then is a single site Capacity Plus 
system is sufficient?  With a single site Capacity Plus system, there is no need to spend additional 
money on multi-site software that is not required, unless the repeaters will be installed at multiple 
locations. 
A: A single site Capacity Plus system is sufficient 
 

12. Do you want us to include mobile radio installation pricing in the proposal, or just an hourly 
installation rate?  If so, we will require a matrix breakdown by department for each type of vehicle 
that you require mobile radios to be installed?  Are there existing VHF mobile radios in each vehicle 
that need removal? 
A: Yes, fixed rate. 
A: All existing VHF mobile radios shall be removed and returned to the City 
 

13. Are the (2) SLR5700 repeaters that you recently purchased installed and operational?  If so, are 
they installed in a rack?  If installed in a rack, what is the rack dimensions? 
A:  The SLRT5700 repeaters have not been installed.   
A: Rack Specifications: https://www.ddbunlimited.com/wp-content/uploads/2013/05/LTEE-D-new-
Enclosure-Manual.pdf 

14. Are all of the repeater software licenses and hardware listed below included in the (2) existing 
SLR5700 repeaters: 

 HKLV4427 Singe site Capacity Plus trunking 

 HKVN4048 Enhanced Scheduled GPS License 

 HKVN4177 Restricted Access to System Security 

 HKVN4205 Data Network Application Interface (IP Wireline Data Gateway) 

 HKVN4055 Enhanced Scheduled GPS License 

 PMLE4548 Rack Mount Duplexer/Filter Enclosure Kit (includes mounting screws) 

 DSCP10725UNTUNED UHF Duplexer ‐ Un-tuned 406‐500 MHz 

 HFE8459 UHF Preselector, 440‐474 MHz 

 DSJ9782 HP Procurve 2530‐24 Ethernet Switch or equivalent 
A: Yes 

 
15. Do you have or require a UPS to be installed at the repeater site and dispatch console locations to 

protect the equipment from a power surge, lightning strike, power failure, etc? 
A: The City will provide UPSs for all repeaters and dispatchers consoles. 

  

https://www.ddbunlimited.com/wp-content/uploads/2013/05/LTEE-D-new-Enclosure-Manual.pdf
https://www.ddbunlimited.com/wp-content/uploads/2013/05/LTEE-D-new-Enclosure-Manual.pdf


 

 
 
 
 
 
 

16. Are the (2) existing COL45 Series UHF Meander Collinear antennas and coaxial cables properly 
grounded at the top and bottom of the cable run, and do they have proper lightning surge protection 
installed? 
A: Yes 
 

17. Are you looking for system redundancy, in the event of repeater or site failure? 
A: Repeater redudancy 
 

18. Is this a single site Capacity Plus system or a multi-site Linked Capacity Plus system? If multi-site, 
what are the addresses of all the sites? Do all talk groups need to be accessed at all sites?  
A: This is a single site only 

 
19. What EIDs/Licenses have been purchased and/or activated in current SLR5700 repeaters? 

 HKLV4427 Singe site Capacity Plus trunking 

 HKVN4048 Enhanced Scheduled GPS License 

 HKVN4177 Restricted Access to System Security 

 HKVN4205 Data Network Application Interface (IP Wireline Data Gateway) 

 HKVN4055 Enhanced Scheduled GPS License 

 
20. Do customer supplied repeaters include duplexers and preselectors? Rack space for additional 

repeater and ancillary equipment? Power? 
A: No duplexers and preselectors - Rack space and power only 
 

21. Is there network connectivity at the tower site?  
A: Yes 
 

22. Will any existing installed cable, connectors, grounding equipment, antenna system, etc. be 
utilized? If so, do you have an equipment list? Will there be a site walk? 
A: Existing installed cable, connectors, grounding equipment, and antenna system shall be utilized. 
A: Please see antenna specifications 
 

23. Are there any future plans to expand capacity of the system? More talkgroups and/or users? 
A: 4 additional talk groups 
 

24. Do all 6 talk groups need to be recorded? 
A: Yes 
 

25. How many concurrent tablet and/or mobile users need to be connected to a talkgroup at a given 
time? Do mobile users need access to both voice and GPS maps? 
A: Talkgroup communication shall be resitricted to radios and dispatcher concole(s) only 

 



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
27. Will both the XPR7550e and XPR5550e need to be tracked via GPS? 

A: Yes 
 

28. Does the tower site have generator backup and/or UPS or do we need to provide UPS equipment? 
A: The City will provide generator backup and UPS equipment 
 
 

CHANGE TO EXHIBIT “A” 
See below the revised Exhibit “A” Rev.1 

 
EXHIBIT “A” Rev.1 

 
SCOPE OF SERVICES 

INTRODUCTION 
 
The City of Lake Worth is requesting proposals from qualified individuals or firms for the supply 
and deployment of a digital radio system which will cover all of City of Lake Worth Service 
territory.  The project includes, at a minimum: seventy eight (78) digital portable radios, seven 
(7) digital portable radios, seventy one (71) digital mobile radios, GPS tracking system on a 
dedicated data revert channel, and a Radio 2 Radio Recording System for dispatchers.  
 
BACKGROUND 
 
This project is being pursued to allow The City of Lake Worth to have integrated communications 
with all of its service branches across all of its service area, thereby enhancing communications, 
and simplifying operating requirements.  This system will allow clear communications across the 
entire City of Lake Worth service area, allowing City of Lake Worth to provide safer, more 
efficient customer service. 
 
SCOPE OF WORK 
  
The successful proposer shall be responsible for providing, installing and ensuring the proper 
operation of the radio equipment.  Successful proposers must be a factory authorized dealer or 
distributor of the product bid and is qualified and equipped to offer in-house service, maintenance 
and technical training assistance, including availability of spare parts and replacement units as 
set by the manufacturer guidelines for the proposed equipment.  The successful proposer will 
design and submit the radio system to comply with the current regulations as well as the requests 
contained in this RFP from the City of Lake Worth. 
 
  



 

 
 
 
 
SPECIAL PROVISIONS 
 
Proposer is responsible for the procurement of all necessary band-width and will ensure that 
there will be sufficient data coverage for all City of Lake Worth radios.  The City currently has a 
registered UHF FCC license, UHF Antenna, and two (2) SL 5700 Motorola Digital repeaters that 
are to be integrated into the system solution by the successful proposer.  Propose only new, 
unused equipment.  No obsolete or soon-to-be-phased out equipment may be included in the 
proposal.  The City will not accept refurbished equipment or equipment deemed to be a factory 
second or blemished.  The City of Lake Worth reserves the right to reject any equipment with 
visible damage.  
 
Proposals shall consist of one manufacturer of equipment to complete the entire two-way radio 
system. The City will not accept the mixing of multiple brands of equipment to complete the 
system.  Exceptions may be accepted on non-radio equipment upon approval of The City of 
Lake Worth staff.  Installation of equipment will be at a location and time to be determined by 
City of Lake Worth staff.  
 
Proposals shall be based at a minimum 6 talk-groups consisting of the following channels in 
each: 
 

1. Water Department - 2 Dispatchers 
2. Electric Department - 2 Dispatchers 
3. Meter Shop Department - 1 Dispatcher 
4. Public Services Department 
5. Engineering Department 
6. Maintenance 

 
The talk-around channel should be accessible to all radios on the trunk. 
 
RADIO INVENTORY 
 

 
 

No. DEPARTMENT PORTABLE RADIOS MOBILE RADIOS DESKTOP RADIOS PORTABLE SINGLE CHARGERS (IMPRES) PORTABLE MULTI-CHARGER STATION (6 slots / IMPRES) TALKGROUP NAME TALKGROUP #
1 T&D ELECTRIC 15 19 0 1 3 LWU - ELECTRIC 2
2 SYSOPS 3 0 0 3 0 LWU - ELECTRIC 2
3 ENGINEERING 7 0 0 5 0 LWU - ELECTRIC 2
4 METERSHOP 11 11 0 11 0 LWU - METERSHOP 3
5 CITYHALL 1 0 0 1 0 LWU - ELECTRIC 0

TOTAL 37 30 0 21 3

No. DEPARTMENT PORTABLE RADIOS MOBILE RADIOS DESKTOP RADIOS PORTABLE SINGLE CHARGERS PORTABLE MULTI-CHARGER STATION (6 slots) TALKGROUP NAME TALKGROUP #
1 WATER TREATMENT PLANT 13 3 0 7 1 LWU - WATER 1
2 WATER DISTRIBUTION 20 20 0 14 2 LWU - WATER 1

TOTAL 33 23 0 21 3

No. DEPARTMENT PORTABLE RADIOS MOBILE RADIOS DESKTOP RADIOS PORTABLE SINGLE CHARGERS PORTABLE MULTI-CHARGER STATION (6 slots) TALKGROUP NAME TALKGROUP #
1 PUBLIC SERVICES 15 18 15 0 PUBLIC SERVICES 4

TOTAL 15 18 0 10 0

CLWU Radio Count 10/12/16



 

 
 
 
 
GPS CAPABILITIES AND FLEET MONITORING 
 
Proposals should include a GPS tracking system that allows users to track and manage fleets 
in real-time via a web browser on a desktop, tablet or mobile phone.  Manage mobile assets, 
increase personnel safety, audit vehicle routes and create comprehensive reports to optimize 
efficiency.  The application should be easy to operate and can be applied to a wide range of 
applications for both mobile and portable radio fleets. 
 
SYSTEM MONITORING  
 
A system-monitoring terminal or web application that will provide total radio system monitoring 
and diagnostics. The System Monitoring package shall include all necessary equipment, 
software, cables and wiring for installation and proper operation by City of Lake Worth 
employees and meet or exceed the following specifications:  
 

 User-friendly operation  
 Complete monitoring of the City of Lake Worth radio system  
 Data logging with the ability to print or store activity  
 Identify users and activity  
 Complete system diagnostics 

 
WARRANTY 
 
The successful bidder shall provide warranty on all equipment under this Contract for a period 
of three (3) years.  The warranty shall guarantee the equipment to be free of defects in materials 
and workmanship under normal usage and conditions for this period.  The warranty shall begin 
upon City of Lake Worth’s final acceptance of all work.  In the event of shipment of equipment, 
the successful bidder shall pay shipping costs to return or replace the equipment to the City of 
Lake Worth.  The warranty shall also cover any costs incurred to reprogram and reinstall the 
equipment.  Bidders are expected to include with their bid all warranty information pertaining to 
the equipment proposed in the Bid. 
 
TESTING 
 
The successful bidder shall perform comprehensive and thorough testing of the two-way radio 
system once work is complete.  Final approval from the City of Lake Worth is contingent, but not 
limited to, the system passing all phases of testing. 
 
  



 

 
 
 
 
TRAINING  
 
The successful bidder shall provide comprehensive and thorough training to City of Lake Worth 
staff to adequately operate and maintain the two-way radio system.  This training shall include, 
but not be limited to, proper operation, user programming, and troubleshooting of radios and 
related equipment. 
 
MAINTENANCE 
 
The successful proposer shall provide a comprehensive maintenance service plan to include 
testing, replacement, and repair as necessary of all equipment installed for the entire radio 
system.  Include the cost for the first three (3) years of the City of Lake Worth two-Way Radio, 
along with the cost for an additional two (2) one-year options. 
 
COMPLIANCE 
 
Only propose equipment that will properly operate according to all FCC and Federal, State, and 
local regulations. 
 
CERTIFICATIONS 
 
The successful bidder shall have a Certified Service Center in the State of Florida and be a 
authorized service partner employing certified, insured technicians authorized to provide onsite 
in-warranty repair services. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

LAKE WORTH SERVICE AREA

 



 

UHF ANTENNA SPECIFICATIONS

 



 

UHF ANTENNA SPECIFICATIONS (cont.)

 



 

RADIO STATION AUTHORIZATION 

 



 

RADIO STATION AUTHORIZATION (cont.)

 
 
  



 

RADIO MATRIX 
 

 
 
The City reserves the right to delete or amend any of the services as listed and described herein 
in negotiations with the selected firm.  
 

END OF SCOPE OF SERVICES 
 

 
 
 
 

 
Proposers must acknowledge receipt of this Addendum No. 1 in the space provided below.  This 
Addendum forms an integral part of the RFP documents and therefore must be executed and submitted 
with you proposal.   
 
Issued By: City of Lake Worth    Signed By: _______________________ 

Financial Services             Hirut Darge 
November 16, 2016                     Purchasing Agent 

 
 
PROPOSER/Company  
 
 
Company Name: _____________________________________________________________    
 
 
Signed By: _____________________________ Print Name: __________________________ 
 
 
Title: __________________________________________   Date: ______________________ 
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